

Inventory Control System For Thai Audio Company Limited

By

Ms. Sangravee Lungaramfha

Final Report of the Three - Credit Course CS 6998 System Development Project



March, 1999





132080

CRADUCTO SCHOOL LIBBARY

For Thai Audio Company Limited

By Ms.Sangravee Lungaramfha

Final Report of the Three-Credit Course CS 6998 System Development Project

Submitted in Partial Fulfillment of the Requirements for the Degree of Master of Science In Computer Information Systems Assumption University

SINCE1969

Project Title	Inventory Control System for Thai Audio Company Limited	
Name	Ms.Sangravee Lungaramfha	
Project Advisor	Air Marshal Dr.Chulit Meesajjee	
Academic Year	1999	
		2

The Graduate Schools of Assumption University has approved this final report of the threecredit course, CS 6998 System Development Project, submitted in partial fulfillment of the requirements for the degree of Master of Science in Computer Information Systems.

Approval Committee:

AM. chulil lessappe

(Air Marshal Dr.Chulit Meesajjee) Dean and Advisor

(Prof.Dr.Srisakdi Charmonman) Chairman

(Dr.Sudhiporn Patumtaewapibal) Member

(Assoc.Prof.Somchai Thayarnyong) MUA Representative

March 1999

ABSTRACT

This project presents its analysis and design for Inventory Control System of Thai Audio Co., Ltd. The Inventory Control System is the important section of Thai Audio Co., Ltd. Therefore, the company wishes to develop the inventory control system in order to serve the customer's requirement quickly and to improve work flow and data flow within the company.

At present, the company operates its business activity manually so it causes many problems such as delay response for customer's need, inaccurate information of goods in stock and disorderly function between inventory and sales staffs. Under this circumstance, the company decides to operate its business by using a computerized system instead of the manual based system. The study of the proposed system concerns the data flow diagram for improving work flow of the company. The system is implemented on Microsoft Access as the software tool. The cost analysis and cost comparison of the proposed system is determined by using the payback methods. Also, we are concerned with the break-even analysis in which we use the accumulating cost to determine the break-even point between the existing system and the proposed system. As a result, the graph on page 26 shows that at the averaged year 1.4, the new system costs the same as the old one. With regard to implementing the proposed system, the employees will work in parallel between the existing system and the proposed system until they are familiar with the new one. At the same time, they will be trained to use the computer system on how to enter the main menu and exit the screen.

After the implementation, it is satisfactory to the company's performance even if there are some problems in using the computer system at first. We found that the transaction process of the proposed system provides about 10 records of stock available in 1 minute whereas the same records take at least 15 minutes by the manual system. We can say that the new system gains many advantages such as rapid time in response to the customer's requirements as well as orderly employee function within each section. As for the company future, the company would bring Microsoft Excel to implement with accounting section. This would enhance the company's performance promptly.

i

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

The author wishes to take this opportunity to thank Air Marshal Dr. Chulit Meesajjee, the advisor of this project, for his comments and recommendation for this course of work.

The author would like to thank all other committee members, Prof.Dr.Srisakdi Charmonman, Dr. Sudthiporn Patumtaewapibal and Asso.Prof.Dr.Somchai Thayarnyong, for providing her an opportunity to persue this project. Also, the author is grateful to all the lecturers in the MS(CIS) program for providing their valuable knowledge during her study in ABAC.

The author extends her sincere thanks to her friends Ms. Sasiluk Charoensomprasong, Ms. Ratchada Damrongsri, Ms. Sureeporn Kulcharoen and Ms. Anothai Wattanapanikorn for their help and information provided to her.

Finally, the author wishes to thank her family for their encouragement throughout this course of work.

ABAC GRADUATE SCHOOL LIBRARY

TABLE OF CONTENTS

<u>Chapter</u>

6.0

Page

۲

i
ii
v
vii

1 10 IN 1

I. INT		RODUCTION	
	1.1	Background of The Project	1
	1.2	Objectives of The Project	1
	1.3	Scope of The Project	1
	1.4	Project Plan	2
II.	THE	EXISTING SYSTEM	
	2.1	Background of The Company	3
	2.2	Existing Business Functions	3
	2.3	Current Problems and Areas for Improvements	4
		* OMNIA *	
III.	THE	PROPOSED SYSTEM 1969	
	3.1	User requirements	7
	3.2	Systems Design	
		3.2.1 Overview of the Proposed System	8
		3.2.2 New System Design	9
		3.2.3 File Layout	16
	3.3	Hardware and Software Requirements	
		3.3.1 Hardware Requirements	18
		3.3.2 Software Requirements	19

.

Chapter

Page

	3.4	Cost/Benefit Analysis	
		3.4.1 Cost Analysis	21
		3.4.2 Benefit Analysis	24
		3.4.3 Break-Even Analysis	25
	3.5	Security and Control	29
IV.	PRO	JECT IMPLEMENTATION	
	4.1	Programming	30
	4.2	Testing VERS/>	30
	4.3	Installing	30
	4.4	Training	30
	4.5	Documentation	31
	4.6	Result of Implementation	31
	-		
V.	COl	VCLUSION AND RECOMMENDATION	
	5.1	Conclusion	32
	5.2	Recommendation	33
		LABOR	
APPEN	DIX	A Data Dictionary	34
APPENI	DIX	B Process Specification	37
APPEN	DIX	C File Layout	41
APPENI	DIX	D Input/Output Design and Reports	49

BIBLIOGRAPHY

73

LIST OF FIGURES

Figure	<u>s</u>	Page
1.1	Gantt Chart	2
2.1	Organization Chart	5
2.2	Context Diagram of Existing System	6
3.1	Context Diagram of Proposed System	11
3.2	Data flow Diagram Level 0	12
3.3	Data flow Diagram Level 1.0	13
3.4	Data flow Diagram Level 2.0	14
3.5	Data Flow Diagram Level 3.0	15
3.6	Hardware Configuration of the proposed computerized system	20
3.7	Break-Even Analysis between the existing system and	
	the proposed system	28
C.1	Customer Master File	41
C.2	Vendor Master File	42
C.3	Product Master File	43
C.4	Stock Transaction File	44
C.5	Customer Order Transaction File	45
C.6	Vendor Order Transaction File	46
C.7	Customer Invoice Transaction File	47
C.8	Vendor Invoice File	48

٠

v

Figures

Page

D.1	Main Menu of Inventory Control System	49
D.2	Daily Transaction Menu	50
D.3	Stock Form	51
D.4	Customer Order Form	52
D.5	Vendor Order Form	53
D.6	Customer Invoice Form	54
D.7	Record Menu	55
D.8	Customer Record Form	56
D.9	Vendor Record Form	57
D.10	Product Record Form	58
D.11	Vendor Invoice Form	59
D.12	Report Menu	60
D.13	Daily Report Menu	61
D.19	Monthly Report Menu	67
	ABOR * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * *	

LIST OF TABLES

<u>Tables</u>		Page
3.1	Annual Cost Comparison	26
3.2	Break-Even Analysis of Existing System	27
3.3	Break-Even Analysis of Proposed System	27
D.14	Stock Daily Report	62
D.15	Customer Order Report	63
D.16	Vendor Order Report	64
D.17	Out of Stock Report	65
D.18	Top Sales Daily Report	66
D.20	Stock Monthly Report	68
D.21	Out of Stock Monthly Report	69
D.22	Sales Report	70
D.23	Inventory Status Report	71
D.24	Top Sales Monthly Report	72
	St GABRIEL	
	* OMNIA *	
	SINCE1969	
	<i>่วท</i> ยาลัยอัสละ	

I. INTRODUCTION

1.1 Background of The Project

Thai Audio Company Ltd. is a wholesaler and a retailer regarding spare parts for audio. Though it is a family company, the shareholders wish to solve its present problem as well as to improve and develop Inventory Control System that is the main activity of the company.

Nowadays, Thai Audio Co., Ltd. operates its business activities based on the manual system. This causes so many problems for the inventory control system. There are many problems in human and documentation's which bring trouble to all employees. Therefore, Thai Audio Co., Ltd. would bring the computer system to operate the Inventory Control System.

With the continuous growth of the company and its aim to satisfy the customers' need, Thai Audio Co., Ltd. is now moving ahead to further pursuit information technology and to replace the manual based system by the computer based system.

1.2 Objectives of The Project

- To study the existing system of Inventory Section.
- To analyze the existing system, understand problems and user's requirements.
- To design a computer based system of Inventory Control System.
- To implement a program for Inventory Control System.

1.3 Scope of The Project

The study will concentrate on the inventory status (keeping all information and details of spare parts for audio) and will be implemented on PC-based computerized system using Microsoft Access 97.

1.4 Project Plan (Gantt Chart)



Figure 1.1. Gantt Chart for project plan

II. THE EXISTING SYSTEM

2.1 Background of the Company

Thai Audio Co., Ltd. was established in 1990 with the registered capital of 300,000 Baths and 10 employees. The company's business activity is a wholesaler and a retailer regarding spare parts for audio.

At present, the company has grown rapidly with larger customers. The company also has more business contracts with domestic vendor and foreigner vendor. Sales and Inventory section are the major functions of the company. Sales section deal directly with the customer and try to sell as much goods as possible. By the way, Inventory section would provide an accurate information of goods for the sales section.

As the majority of goods is small spare parts for audio, there are many spare parts within the inventory section. The problem is that the work is done manually by the staffs of inventory section and they always cannot inform the accurate information for Sales staff's requirement. This causes so much current problem for the company.

Under this circumstance, the company would bring the computerized control system to replace the manual system for the hope to improve and develop the Inventory Control System.

2.2 The Existing Business Functions

Thai Audio Co., Ltd. consists of 3 main sections:

1. Sales Section acts as the nerve center and has the responsibility for selling and serving customer.

- Inventory Section is responsible for ordering goods and checking the stock according to sales staffs' requirement.
- 3. Accounting Section is responsible for billing and all accounting transactions of the company(e.g. payroll system).

The above 3 mentioned sections has been supervised and controlled by the General Manager. Figure 2.1 shows the organization chart of the company.

We can say that the Inventory Section is the important function of the company since it has controlled the goods or stock and deal with other sections. Efficiency inventory control would support all other functions as well.

2.3 Current Problems and Areas for Improvements

The current problem and area for improvement is the Inventory Section. The present inventory control system has been controlled by the manual based system. The staffs have checked the movement of stock by paper records. There are many problems to check for accurate information of the stock. Moreover, there is no plan to specify to the staffs to do the specific function. It will depend on who is free at that time. The related problem is that sales and inventory staffs have interchanged their work somehow. We show the context diagram of the existing system in figure 2.2.

Upon overview of the present problem, the inventory control system should be improved by using the computerized system to control and check the stock. In addition, the function of sales and inventory section should be handled separately according to circumstance.

^ทยาลัยอั**ล**ั

Organization Chart of Thai Audio Company Limited



Figure 2.1. Organization Chart



Figure 2.2. Context Diagram of the Existing System

III. THE PROPOSED SYSTEM

The proposed system is designed to replace the existing manual system. The proposed computerized system will control all information of all sections, especially the inventory section. The main objective is to increase performance for the inventory section, resulting in good performance for other related sections.

3.1 User Requirements

We can say that the following sections are the users of the proposed system:

- 1. The Inventory section controls the stocks and updates them perfectly through the computer system in daily transaction so that he can inform the accurate information to sales section.
- 2. The Sales section is important to end user. He must have knowledge to find the required information for the customer's need through a computerized system.
- The Accounting section is also the other end user related in case he would find the related information (e.g customer invoice for billing). But he is not authorized to update or edit the inventory control program.

After we have specified the user's functions, we also should prepare the appropriate hardware and software for the company's performance. The following information system is designed for end users:

- 1. Daily Transaction for the related users:
 - Stock
 - Customer Order
 - Vendor Order
 - Customer Invoice

- 2. Daily Record for the related users:
 - Customer
 - Vendor
 - Product
 - Vendor Invoice
- 3. Daily Reports and Monthly Reports for management level:
 - Daily Stock Report
 - Customer Order Report
 - Vendor Order Report
 - Out of Stock Report
 - Top Sales Daily Report
 - Monthly Stock Report
 - Out of Stock Monthly Report
 - Sales Report
 - Inventory Status Report
 - Top Sales Monthly Report

3.2 Systems Design

3.2.1 Overview of the Proposed System

The proposed system is designed to support better performance of the inventory control system. The computer program that we use to perform the system is Microsoft Access 97. As for other section, especially accounting section, we use Microsoft Excel.

SINCE1969

The users who are inventory staffs and sales staffs will use Microsoft Access for daily transaction in which we have designed the interface screen for easy use. And, the user will be trained to use the mentioned program as well.

3.2.2 The New System Design

-

In order to improve the performance of the inventory section, we need to design its logical data flow. We are going to discuss about the context diagram and the logical data flow which are necessary for the new system design.

Figure 3.1 shows the context diagram that is the view of the inventory control system and its relation to other sections. The data flow diagram of process level 0, data flow diagram of process level 1.0, data flow diagram of process level 2.0, data flow diagram of process level 3.0 are shown in Figures 3.2, 3.3, 3.4, 3.5 respectively. As for data dictionary and process specification, they are shown in Appendices A and B respectively.

The whole of the proposed system is divided into 4 processes as stated below:

Process 1.0:	Get Order
5	-To check customer records
S	-To verify customer orders
PS.	-To update customer records
D	LABOR
Process 2.0	Create Invoices
æ	-To create customer invoice
	-To update customer invoice and vendor invoice
	-To check and process product on hand
	-To inform sales section for stock available
	-To communicate with accounting section with regard to customer
	invoices and vendor invoices

Process 3.0 Set Pricing -To create price list for sale -To update product on hand after setting price -To inquiry vendor order and update vendor records

Process 4.0 Update Inventory

SUN

-To inform product on hand upon request

-To adjust and update quantity on hand

-To daily update product on hand after sale

The above mentioned 4 processes have been designed to control the inventory system for better performance. This leads to many advantages compared to the existing system as follows:

SINCE1969

-To distinguish the function between sales and inventory sections. -It provides more convenient and accuracy information. -It reduces disorderly function because the proposed system will specify the function for each staff. -It helps the prospective view for the management level in case of expansion to meet the company growth. * 2129739



Figure 3.1. Context Diagram of the Proposed System





OF. LIBRARY

CRATHANN

k. {

Figure 3.3. Dataflow Diagram Level 1 (1.0 Get Order)



Figure 3.4. Dataflow Diagram Level 1 (2.0 Create Invoice)

ABAC GRADUATE SCHOOL LIBRAN



3.2.3 File Layout

The proposed system stores its database by using Microsoft Access 97. It consists of 3 master files, 4 transaction files and 1 record file. Three master files are mentioned below:

-Customer Master File -Vendor Master File -Product Master File

Customer Master File contains customer records that are customer code, customer name, contact name, address, telephone no., fax no., credit term, credit limit, amount owed.

Vendor Master File contains vendor records that are vendor code, vendor name, contact name, address, telephone no., fax no.

Product Master File contains product information that consists of product code, product name, product detail, vendor code, vendor name, unit price, sale price, product on hand, value on hand.

As for transaction file, there are 4 daily transaction files. Besides this, there is one record file that is Vendor Invoice File. Please consider the mentioned files as follows:

-Stock Transaction File contains product code, product name, product detail, vendor name, unit price, sales price and quantity. This file shows the stock available for sales section.

-Customer Order Transaction File contains information of customers and products. This file is designed for sales section when they act as a retailer in front of the store.

-Vendor Order Transaction File contains information of suppliers and products. This file is designed for inventory section in case they order the products from both domestic vendor and foreigner vendor.

-Customer Invoice Transaction File contains information of customers and products. This file is designed for sales section when they act as a wholesaler.

-Vendor Invoice File contains information of vendor and product details that we have purchased from mentioned vendor. The above mentioned file layouts are shown in Appendix C.



3.3 Hardware and Software Requirements

3.3.1 Hardware Requirements

The proposed system requires the specification of hardware as follows:

A) File Server

-POWELL SERVER II 333 Harddisk 4.3GB Ultra DMA MODE Intel Pentium II 333 MHz, CD-ROM Keyboard 104 keys POWELL mouse

B) Workstations

-POWELL workstation Intel Pentium II 333 MHz, DVD Harddisk 3.2 GB Ultra DMA MODE Keyboard 104 keys POWELL mouse

C) Printers

3 Units

3 Units

1 Unit

-OKI OP4W PLUS 4 SPEED(PPM), 256K BUFFER(MB) PAPER A4, B5, A5, A6, Letter, Executive

D) LAN accessories

-Hub 8 port	1 Unit
-LAN Card 16 mbps	4 Cards
-UTP Cat 5 Cable	40 Metres
-RJ-15 connector	4 Units

ABAC OBADUANT SCOOL LIBBAR

E) UPS

1 Unit

-EGYS-L Line Interactive UPS

- 3.3.2 Software Requirements
- A) Network Operating System

-Netware Version 4.1

B) Microsoft Window

-Microsoft Window'95

C) Microsoft Office'97

-Microsoft Access 97

-Microsoft Excel 97

-Microsoft Word 97

-Microsoft Power Point 97

-Microsoft Outlook 97 SINCE1969

Figure 3.6 shows hardware configuration of the proposed computerized system



3.4 Cost/Benefit Analysis

3.4.1 Cost Analysis

First, we are going to discuss about cost analysis which consists of **investment cost**, **implementation cost and annual operating cost**. We should state the cost of the existing system that is the employee costs as follows:

1) Salary of Sales Section -One supervisor of the section 15,000 Bht/month - 4 staffs (8,000*4) 32,000 Bht/month 47,000 Bht/month Total 564,000 Bht/year or Salary of Inventory Section 22,500 Bht/month -3 staffs (7,500*3) 270,000 Bht/year or Salary of Accounting Section 9,000 Bht/month -1 staff (9,000) 108,000/year or 20,000 Bht/month Salary of General Manage 240,000 Bht/year or

Total employee costs for 10 staffs per month98,500 Bht/monthor1,182,000 Baht/year

Now, we are going to discuss the cost analysis of the proposed system as follows:

Investment Cost

Investment cost includes hardware cost and software cost as follows:

Hardware Cost Estimate	Unit	Price	Total
POWELL SERVER II 333	1	69,900	69,900
POWELL workstation	3	45,000	135,000
OKI OP4W PLUS printer	3	8,900	26,700
SOCOMEC SICON UPS (EGYS-L)	1	3,770	3,770
LAN Accessories	1	14,000	14,000
Total hardware cost			249,370 Bht
Software Cost Estimate	R SUnit	Price	Total
Netware Version 4.1	1	30,000	30,000
Microsoft Window 95	1	10,000	10,000
Microsoft Office 97		28,000	28,000
Total software cost Hardware Installation Charge		AILAND	68,000 Bht
Consultant Fee *	VINCIT	*	8.000
Engineer Fee	E1969 30	>	7,000
Transportation Fee	ัยอัสสั ^{ญบั}		1,000
Total charge			16,000 Bht
Total Investment Cost			333,370 Bht
Implementation Cost			
User training and site preparation			20,000 Bht
Total implement cost			20,000 Bht



Annual Operation Cost

-Continuos paper	3,000
-A4 paper	4,000
-3.5 Diskette	2,000
-OKI Cartridge	3,000
-Maintenance	20,000

Total annual operating cost

32,000 Bht

The formula of annual cost of the proposed system

Annual Cost = Investment Cost + Implementation Cost + Annual Operating Cost

Estimated System Life Year

333,370 + 20,000 + 32,000

102.674 Bht

5

Payback Period

The payback period is used to judge the profitability of a system. We can calculate it by using the following formula:

$$P = I$$
(1-T) R

where

P = Payback Period Ι

- = Investment Cost
- R = Average annual return on investment
- T = Corporate tax rate in percentage (30%)

Find the average annual return on investment by

=	Total saving - Annual operating cost
=	282,000 - 102,674
1078044 	179,326 Bht

Reduce 10 staffs to 7 staffs as follows

Sales section reduces 2 staffs (8,000*2)	16,000 Bht
Inventory section reduces 1 staff (7,500*1)	7,500 Bht
Saving for 3 staffs	23,500 Bht
Saving salary per year 23,500 * 12	282,000 Bht

Total saving

282,000 Bht

Payback period

333,370 (1-0.3) 179,326 2.66 years

Payback period (after taxed) for the proposed system is 2.66 years.

In addition, we would show the annual cost comparison between the existing system and the proposed system in table 3.1. NCE1969

3.4.2 Benefit Analysis

After we have applied the proposed computerized system to the company, we can say that the following two benefits are concerned:

1. Tangible benefit:

-Elimination of manual operations.

-Reduction of 2 sales staffs and 1 inventory staff.

-Increased sales due to better responsiveness.

-Faster processing of inventory section.

2. Intangible benefit

-Smoothing of operational flow.

-Providing the required document and information with accuracy.

-Providing the customer's satisfaction.

-Improving employee morale.

-Having higher ability in domestic competition.

-Reducing volume of paper produced and handled.

3.4.3 Break-Even Analysis

The method of break-even analysis is used to compare the costs of the proposed system and the existing system. At the beginning, the cost of proposed system will be high because of the installation of hardware and software system. But thereafter it is more economical compared to that of the existing system.

Table 3.2 shows a break-even analysis of the existing system whereas a break-even analysis of the proposed system is shown in Table 3.3. From the two tables of break-even analysis, we would use accumulating cost to determine the point at which the proposed system costs the same as that of the existing system. Figure 3.7 shows such a break-even analysis, in which the cost of the proposed system would be higher than that of the existing system. At the estimated year 1.4, the proposed system would have reached the break-even point and thereafter become more economical to operate than the existing system.

	1 st Year	2nd Year	3rd Year	4th Year	5th Year	Total
Existing System						
10 staffs (1,182,000 + 10% yearly)	1,182,000	1,300,200	1,430,220	1,573,242	1,730,566.20	7,216,228.20
Utility (25,000 + 10% yearly)	25,000	27,500	30,250	33,275	36,602.50	152,627.50
Other expenses (10,000 + 10% yearly)	10,000	11,000	12,100	13,310	14,641	61,051
Total Existing System	1,217,000	1,338,700	1,472,570	1,619,827	1,781,809.70	7,429,906.70
Proposed System	18.2			~ 1		
7 staffs (900,000 + 10% yearly)	900,000	000'066	1,089,000	1,197,900	1,317,690	5,494,590
Hardware (249,370/5 years)	49,874	49,874	49,874	49,874	49,874	249,370
Software (68,000/5 years)	13,600	13,600	13,600	13,600	13,600	68,000
Hardware Installation Charge (16,000/5 years)	3,200	3,200	3,200	3,200	3,200	16,000
Implementation Cost (20,000/5 years)	4,000	4,000	4,000	4,000	4,000	20,000
Maintenance and Operating Cost	32,000	35,200	38,720	42,592	46,851.20	195,363.20
(32,000 + 10% yearly)	AND	ANL				
Utility (40,000 + 10% yearly)	40,000	44,000	48,400	53,240	58,564	244,204
Other expenses (10,000 + 10% yearly)	10,000	11,000	12,100	13,310	14,641	61,051
Total Proposed System	1,052,674	1,150,874	1,258,894	1,377,716.00	1,508,420.20	6,348,578.20

Table 3.1. Annual Cost Comparison
Table 3.2. Break-Even Analysis

	1st Year	2nd Year	3rd Year	4th Year	5th Year
Existing System					
10 staffs (1,182,000 + 10% yearly)	1,182,000	1,300,200	1,430,220	1,573,242	1,730,566.20
Utility (25,000 + 10% yearly)	25,000	27,500	30,250	33,275	36,602.50
Other expenses $(10,000 + 10\% \text{ yearly})$	₩ 10,000	11,000	12,100	13,310	14,641
Total Existing System	1,217,000	1,338,700	1,472,570	1,619,827	1,781,809.70
Accumulating Cost	1,217,000	2,555,700	4,028,270	5,648,097	7,429,906.70
Table 3.3. Break-Even Analysis					
ເດ ເຄີ	1st Year	2nd Year	3rd Year	4th Year	5th Year
Proposed System					

C °6	1st Year	2nd Year	3rd Year	4th Year	5th Year
Proposed System					
7 staffs (900,000 + 10% yearly)	900,000	000'066	1,089,000	1,197,900	1,317,690
Hardware (249,370/5 years)	249,370		a	1	
Software (68,000/5 years)	68,000			*	ø
Hardware Installation Charge (16,000/5 years)	16,000		N-N	1	
Implementation Cost (20,000/5 years)	20,000	1			1
Maintenance and Operating Cost	32,000	35,200	38,720	42,592	46,851.20
(32,000 + 10% yearly)		MAL			
Utility (40,000 + 10% yearly)	40,000	44,000	48,400	53,240	58,564
Other expenses $(10,000 + 10\%$ yearly)	10,000	11,000	12,100	13,310	14,641
Total Proposed System	1,335,370.00	1,080,200	1,188,220	1,307,042	1,437,746.20
Accumulating Cost	1,335,370.00	2,415,570.00	3,603,790.00	4,910,832.00	6,348,578.20



Figure 3.7. Break-Even Analysis Between the existing system VS the proposed system

3.5 Security and Control

Security and Control of the proposed computerized system is very important for the company. The following matters should be stated:

- Database control : Database of the inventory system is a critical matter. The users must have well prepared database for end user. The identical staff is specified to update and edit the information. An unauthorized person is prohibited to do the same function.
- Program Security : The information or data that is updated in each daily activity must have a duplicated copy in the secondary storage such as a diskette. The said diskette should also be kept in a safe place.
- Machine Security: The hardware and the printer should be checked periodically so that we can avoid any environmental hazard e.g moisture, fire.
- Function Control : The staffs must be trained to use the program and to do specific function e.g updating inventory and setting pricing.

969 2233996

IV. PROJECT IMPLEMENTATION

A fundamental expectation of the company is that the staffs are ready to use the new computerized system. However, at the first implementation, the staffs or users must operate parallel functions on old the manual system and the new computerized system. In order for the staffs to be familiar with the new system, the following project implementation should be considered:

4.1 Programming

The new computerized system uses Microsoft Access. This program is based on data collection. Therefore, we should study the database of the area under study (inventory section) and normalize it into understandable database.

4.2 Testing

This stage of implementation involves testing the above program (Microsoft Access). Testing whether the prepared database is workable by full system test, individual program testing and backup and restart testing.

4.3 Installing

At this stage, the computerized system has been fully installed for ready use. Therefore, the site preparation should be in a good environment. The link of each workstation should easily communicate with the space requirements.

4.4 Training

This training stage is also an important implementation. The users must be trained to use the application program. They must understand how to use the program effectively. The company would give the opportunity to the staffs to study the program at a Computer School such as ECC, Siam Computer.

4.5 Documentation

Documentation of the proposed system is separated into 2 types of documents. The first one is the user-guide to operate the program (Microsoft Access User's Manual) and the second one is a data dictionary of the data flow of the system. The staffs should have a fundamental knowledge about the new system. Those user's manual and data dictionary can help the staffs when they have any problem with the program or need information.

4.6 Result of Implementation

At the first period, the staffs have many problems in using the application since they have not yet been familiar with the new system. Problems occur in both hardware and software system. However, when the staffs have been trained to know how the mistake occurred, they are satisfied with the result and they are happy to work with the new computerized system. We can say that we succeed in moving ahead in future expansion.

V. CONCLUSION AND RECOMMENDATION

5.1 Conclusion

The inventory control system of Thai Audio Co., Ltd. is the area under study and to be improved in order to meet the customer's need. Since the inventory section has controlled all goods in stock and in the past it caused so many problems to the company such as inaccurate information of stock available and redundant reports, it should be the initial section for improvement.

The study of the project firstly concerns the existing problem and then we try to solve the problem by designing a logical data flow of inventory section. This will help the staffs to know their duties and functions. The new proposed system is conducted by using the computer system instead of the manual system. After, we have calculated the cost of the proposed system and the existing system, we concluded that the proposed system would result in better performance even though in the first period the cost of the investment is higher than that of the existing one.

We can conclude that the proposed system gives better performance. We find that the customers are satisfied with the company's service in many areas such as rapid time response and accuracy in good's information. And, we hope that we can meet the competitor and can expand into future business activities.

32

5.2 Recommendation

After improving the inventory control system, in the near future, Thai Audio Co., Ltd. has a plan to improve the overall organization such as the sales section and the accounting section. The study of the proposed system of the inventory system shows that the staff's knowledge in using the application program is very important. Efficient work must be accompanied with efficient staffs. In the near future, the accounting section is the second system that the company would be concerned with in developing and improving

Moreover, the company would need a new technology to accommodate the company's performance. The Internet is the new technology that the management level is interested in. The company may use the internet to contact with the customer and vendor for business transaction. In addition, the company would bring a bar code to identify a particular product. And, it would improve the method of calculating a unit price and sales price. The company would use a percentage formula to calculate the difference between a unit price and sale price. A certain percentage of a well-known product is 100% profitability from a unit price whereas a general product is 50% profitability from a unit price. For example, BUZZER is a well-known product, its unit price is 20 Baht so sale price would be 40 Baht.

Thai Audio Co., Ltd. hopes to be successful in developing its business and the company is ready to meet competition in any way.



DATA DICTIONARY OF THE PROPOSED SYSTEM

Customer cust-order

customer code customer name date address

UNI

telephone fax product code product name product detail quantity sale price total customer record

customer_detail

valid_order

Invoice invoices DATA STORE : D1

customer order form customer code + customer name + date + address + telephone + fax + product code + product name + product detail + quantity + sale price + total {legal character} {legal character} {legal character} house number + road + district + province + postcode {numeric digit} {numeric digit} {legal character} {legal character} {legal character} {numeric digit} {numeric digit}

customer code + customer name + contact name+ address + telephone + fax + credit term + credit limit+ amount owned

*the initial checking of customer status whether it is new customer or old customer *to accept the customer's order*

DATA STORE : D2

{numeric digit}

*the document that used to collect money from the customer and send goods to customer

customer invoice

invoice number delivery date contact name payment method

credit term credit limit amount owned

vendor_invoice

vendor name vendor code received date unit price payment slip

customer payment slip

vendor payment slip

invoice that we send to customer
invoice number + delivery date + customer code +

customer name + contact name + address + telephone + fax + payment method + credit term + amount owned + product code + product name + product detail + quantity + sale price + total {numeric digit}

{legal character}

courtesy title + first name + last-name

the method that customer pays to company either cash or cheque

{legal character}

INI

the amount of credit that offered to customer
the amount of money that customer owed to company

invoice that company receives from vendor or supplier

invoice number + date + vendor code + vendor name + address + telephone + fax + received date + product code + product name + product detail + unit price + quantity + total

{legal character}

{legal character}

date of receiving invoice from vendor

vendor price per unit in baht

document that used to be the evidence of payment

the slip that shows payment of customer to company

the slip that shows payment of company to vendor

Product product

product on hand value on hand price list

stock

stk avail

Vendor vendor

vendor order

purchase date purchase order number delivery number legal character numeric digit

DATA STORE : D3

goods in inventory system for sale product code + product name + product detail + vendor code + vendor name + unit price + sale price + product on hand + value on hand *total quantity of product in inventory system* quantity of product on hand + sale price *list of price for sale* product code + product name + product detail + sale price

goods for sale

UNI

product code + product name + product detail + vendor name + quantity + unit price + sale price *the available goods in stock for sales*

DATA STORE : D4

the other company who supplies goods for company

vendor code + vendor name + contact name + address + telephone + fax

the order that company sends to vendor or supplier

vendor code + vendor name + purchase date +
purchase order number + delivery number +
product code + product name + product detail +
unit price + quantity + total
{legal character}

{numeric digit} {numeric digit} [A-Zla-z10-91, 1.1/1-1] [011121314 151617 1819]





PROCESS SPECIFICATION

Process 1.0 Get Order

BEGIN

ACCEPT	cust_order
CHECK	cutomer status

END

Process 1.1 Check Customer Status

BEGIN

FIND customer_detail from Customer Master File

cutomer record is not found

DISPLAY "RECORD NOT FOUND"

UPDATE new customer record to Customer Mater File

ELSE

IF

DISPLAY "VALID_ORDER"

ENDIF

END

Process 2.0 Create Invoice

BEGIN

ACCEPT valid_order CREATE customer_invoice to Salesclerk

GET	vendor_invoice from vendor
PROVIDE	vendor_invoice and customer_invoice to Accounting
REVIEW	product on hand
UPDATE	vendor_invoice and customer_invoice to Invoice File

END

Process 2.1 Process Customer Invoice

BEG	IN	NIVERS/2
ACC	EPT	valid_order from process 1.1
REV	IEW	customer_order
INFO	ORM	information of product_code, product_name and product_detail to
í		process 2.3
	IF	product is available in Stock THEN
		inform salesclerk of stk_avail
U	ENDI	
U	IF	issue customer_invoice to salesclerk THEN
		update customer_invoice to Invoice File
	*	inform customer_invoice to Accounting
	ENDIF	SINCE1969
END		้ ^{(ว} ทยาลัยอัสสี ³³)

Process 2.2 Process Vendor Invoice

vendor_invoice from vendor
vendor_invoice to Invoice File
vendor_invoice to Accounting

END

.

BEGIN	
GET	information of product_code, product_name and product_detail
	from process 2.2
REVIEW	product information + sale price
INFORM	required product information to process 4.0
IF	product on hand is available THEN
	provide stk_avail to process 2.1
ENDI	FANVERSIZ

END

Process 3.0 Set Pricing

BEGIN

PERFORM	vendor_order
UPDATE BOR	vendor information
REVIEW	product_code, product_name, product_detail
SET	new price list for product
UPDATE	product information + sale price to Product Master File

END

Process 3.1 Create Price

BEGIN product deatil from process 3.2 ACCEPT DO WHILE create price for particular product code, product name, product_detail update product information to Product Master File **ENDDO** issue price_list to process 2.3 END 01 10

Process 3.2 Inquiry Vendor

BEC	GIN	
	RECEIVE	product_code, product_name and product_detail from
C	ROTH	process 3.1
E	PERFORM	vendor_order
	INFORM BO	product_detail to process 3.1
	UPDATE	information of vendor to Vendor Master File
END	×12923	SINCE1969
	. 13	ทยาลัยอัสสี่ชั

Process 4.0 Update Inventory

BEGIN

DISPLAY	product on hand to process 2.3
UPDATE	product quantity on hand to Product Master File

END



	Microsoft Access - (Custo	omer : Table]		18
	Billio Citic Wear Incart			П.
調整	Customer Code	Number	Customer Identification	
	Customer Name	Tevt	Customer Name	
	Contact Name	Text	Contact ame	
	Address	Text	Customer Address	100
	Telephone	Text	Phone Number	
	Fax	Text	Fex Number	
	Credit Term	Text	Term offered to customer for payment	
	Credit Limit	Text	Maximum credit allowed to customer	
			Field Plotterber	
	Heidiskip 50	5))		
		An ann an ann ann an Arthol State ann ann ann ann an Ann an Carlain.	teronomic after Provident parameter and	
			The period subject was an a subject to a sub	
		un de la la la filmen anne este filmen de la de la deste de la La deste de la de		
		ang pananan dan kenaganan dagan daga dari kena dalam dara pananan	provide the entry of the Petri Housever	
	Non-	12000-001-001-001-001-001-001-001-001-00	an a	教習
	<u>NU</u>	an jari ka Baran wasan ka Kina da ku na mara Mana ka na mara ka ka mara ka mara ka		
	No	LANGANAN DI DIN JULYAN AN A	Considerate data and a local	
	Υ. C.			
200				ANALYSE OF
an a	1997 - Steven Stevenson, 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1		Microsoft Access - IC.	



Image: State Stat	. Microsoft Access - [Ven	dor : Table]				
Vendor Code Text Supplier Identification Image: Contact Name Vendor Name Text Supplier Name Image: Contact Name Image: Contact Name Contact Name Text Contact Name Image: Contact Name Image: Contact Name Address Text Address Text Address Telephone Number Phone Number Phone Number Fax Number Fax Number Fax Number Fax Number Fax Number Fax Number Fax Supplier Research Supplier Research Fax Number Fax Number Fax Number Fax Supplier Research Supplier Research Fax Number Fax Number Fax Number Fax Supplier Research Supplier Research Supplier Research Fax Research Supplier Research Supplier Research Supplier Research Fax Research Supplier Research Supplier Research Supplier Research Supplier Research Vender Research Supplier Research Supplier Research Supplier Research Suprer Vender		У <u>Е</u> р, — <u>)</u>	2000 27 24 26 26 2000		e la	
Vendor Code Text Supplier Identification Image: Contact Name Vendor Name Text Supplier Identification Image: Contact Name Contact Name Text Contact Name Address Text Address Telephone Number Phone Number Fax Number Fax Number			A I THE REPORT			
Vendor Name Text Supplier Identification 2 Vendor Name Text Supplier Identification 2 Contact Name Text Contact Name 2 Address Text Address 1 Telephone Number Phone Number 2 Fax Number Fax Number 2 Fax Number Fax Number	Vendor Code	Tout	Supplier Identification		S	
Contact Name Text Contact Name Address Text Address Telephone Number Phone Number Fax Number Fax Number Fax Number Fax Number Fax State State Fax Number Fax Number	Vendor Code	Text	Supplier Name	www		
Address Text Address Telephone Number Phone Number Fax Number Fax Number	Contact Name	Text	Contact Name			
Telephone Number Phone Number Fax Number Fax Number Fax Number Fax Number	Address	Text	Address			
Fax Number Fax Number Fax Number Fax Number Fax Fax Number Fax Number Fax Fax Number Fax Number Fax Fax Number Fax Number Fax Fax Number Fax Number Fax Number Fax Number Fax Number Sector So Fax Number Sector So Fax Number Sector So Fax Number Sector So Fax Number So Fax Number Fax Number So So Fax Number So Fax Number Fax Number So So Fax Number So So Fax Number	Telephone	Number	Phone Number			
Source Source Source Source Press Source	Fax	Number	Fax Number			
Fresher Barren B				an 19 - 19 - 19 - 19 - 19 - 19 - 19 - 19		
Field State 50 Field State 50 Somail Somail Door of est Somail Somail Somail			ni maga ngawana na sa			
Field Sales 50 Formal Some Single						
Sett State 50 Field State 50 Formal Arps: Aller Arps: Aller Bit Onic Obschoom as allers all if refer sets details aller Dessal Sate Valuation Rate Aller Valuation Rate Aller Valuation Rate Aller No Aller		te let i se i	er mittel so i tel se e			
Freidischen 50 Freidischen Impolitikant Leisener Destruit / Suber Valuation num Montelling Valuation Num No	and the second s					
Connel Angel Magt Leginar Detail Value Nation of Leginar Angel Magn Angel Magn Ange	Tield Shre	n bulgati ng ata sa pananang jang ata sa pang ing sa	a dahar kumu kulong kulong kulong kana sa kulong kulong kulong kulong kulong kana kulong kulong kulong kulong k			
ner e kraj Deser Vace Sachtor e e Records	Jonat	nationanidae one egodeteen strand. Kristaalijk	an a			
Print Case And the	June Hop	11. Tales V				
Personal Construction Report Francescon Press Provide Statements and Press		NS7 440679844658 027899-700073998007099910-564				
A sector to a sector se		anam kan der ander an der		🖌 🖉 - Alexandri heler		
		and the second descent second constraints	and and the second s			
			Alazati Manjara Lenadari Maraka da maka da makanakanak	and the second second	1. A. A. A.	
	No.	CO				
	Racin and Length No	*(4)***********************************	Alexandra and a second s		623.044	
	Since and No					and and in the second
					and a second	AND DESCRIPTION OF THE OWNER OF THE
					A ROLL DE CON	HARM PARKS (MARK)
Microsoft Access N		199 - 199 199	Access	- IV	200 S. A.	NEN VI CONST
	and the second se	the of the second standing of the second standing of	A STATE OF A	and the second	States and a second states of the	



<u> 1</u>340

GRADUATE SCHOOL LIBRARY

	Microsoft Access - [Product : Table] 👘 🕅 🕅								
		が唱った。	시 원에서 제품 문제법 企业時 조건						
	CONTRACTOR STOL		C/escaption						
	Product Code	Number	Product Identification						
	Product Name	Text	Product Name						
	Product Detail	Text	Product Description						
	Vendor Code	Number	Vendor Identification						
	Vendor Name	Text	Supplier Name						
	Unit Orice	Text	Price per unit from vendor						
	Sale price	Text	Price for sale						
	Product on Hand	Text	Product on hand						
			Peer Dynamises						
			an a						
		1. # 1							
	Tele Side 50	CONTRACT, TALIAN WITH LASS AND THE PARTY OF							
	iona .								
	NUM MORE	and a second							
	Carlon A Marchine								
	NAME AND ADDRESS								
				Constant and the second					
	Remined								
	Nowizen, sin hi No	an a							
	No	elen utakontekselen ere elen yyektter i onner her malabilen som	MC-4002-480-0999-0999-0999-0999-0999-0999-0999-						
and the second second	and the second		Microsoft Access - IP						



SINC

1969 อัสลัมย์เป

	- Microsoft Access - [Stock : Table]								
		V Be							
		切 日日 三 /							
		A SALANA TARA A	Decroher						
5.23	Product Code	Text	Product Identification						
	Product Name	l ext	Product Name	- 10					
	Product Detail		Product Description	-83					
	Vendor Name	lext	Suppler Name	-100					
		Number	Price per unit as sold by supplier						
	Date Frice	Number	Price per unit that sell to customer	-123					
		IN GRIDGI	QUERRY OF PRODUCT WISCON						
		nin i kun mana palakanan gerana yang perangkan di kun panganan di kun panganan di kun panganan di kun panganan							
	AURO	~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~							
		n an							
		A MARKAN AND AND AND AND AND AND AND AND AND A	The second s						
	and the second se	ацаларын кануулардык жогу тардан ^с инуулын өрүүндө бай тарда							
		THE CONSTRAINT OF STREET, SS							
	Mo	National Control of the State of State of State of State of States	Rear and a second se						
		en en de la constante de la con							
	re								
ers derakt									
en. Egymenter		CALL CONTRACTOR	Microsoft Access - 15						



Microsoft Access - [Cu	stomer order : T	nble]	m d m
	A CONTRACTOR	Here:	
	W Ee.		e .
		Contraction Contraction	
Customer Lode	Number	Customer Identification	
Date Name		Lustomer Name	
	Taut Taut	Date Customete addesse	
Tolophana	Taut	Obere pe	
	Text		a na fan a fan
Product Code	Number	Product Identification	
Product Name	Text	Product Name	
Concept Designed			
Even Date 50			
	KA JULIN - A DECO HARRANDECO DI		
rauen 170 million	ana, tangén (Colomba ang ginangan pant dangi mi-Abdabi-Indebagi tah		ere de segure e
	an a		
	₩₩₩₩₩₩₩₩₩₩₩₩₩₩₩₩₩₩₩₩₩₩₩₩₩₩₩₩₩₩₩₩₩₩₩₩₩₩		
events and a second	an Ula Marina Marina Marina San Marina ang ang ang ang ang ang ang ang ang a	and the Auto Auto Auto Auto Auto Auto Auto Auto	CONTRACTOR CORPORE
	an na tana ana ana ana ang ang ang ang ang ang		
No		A CONFICT MILLION OF THE STATE AND A DEPARTMENT OF THE STATE AND A	Less - Card Cardon - C
No	1979-1999 - 1997 - 199		
No	19-1-19-19-19-19-19-19-19-19-19-19-19-19		
		Microsoft Access - IL	SA STEDARS CONTRA

* 21297 Figure C.5. Customer Order Transaction File

SINC

1969 อัสสัมขัยป

	Microsoft Access - [Ver	ndor Order : Tab	ble]	
	H. Hers and second deser		Here	ST F
		V (Er.	利利用型	10
		99 - E - 2		
			Deceptors	
100	Vendor Lode	l ext	Suppler Identification	
80%) 1972/9	ruichase Date	Date/Time	Purchase Date	
	Ducinan Order Number	I EX(Suppler Name	
	Dispussion all sectors	Number	No. of policitase of the day	
	Product Code	Taol	Product Identification	
	Product Name	Text	Product Name	
	Product Detail	Text	Product detail	
	and the second			
	50			
	and the second	an a		
	and a start press of the	n general van een de skrieten op ste de skriet op de skrieten op de skrieten op de skrieten op de skrieten op d	Lynnollog gran (L. G. Bayers A. Beneze) (Mary and Analysis)	
		an one and the second		
	a di seconda a di se	analogiter Tartistick for structure and and structure and and an and		ere er er fil
		allan (yanan yang yang yang yang yang yang yang		
		(74 PT The final carry campage (2) (2) ⁽¹⁾ - (Lott Beller in Antick (2019) (2) (2019)		
	No		Multiple Approx 247 out CMM approximate 2	
	No.	an in the second of the second sec		
	No.	947999878579628626252398872×104572537893228985283452		
	10			
			A REAL PROPERTY AND A REAL	
ALC: N				
a. Stan est	Charles and Charles a		Microsoft Access - IV	

Figure C.6. Vendor Order Transaction File

. 1	- Microsoft Access - (Customer Invoice : Table)								
		心,間 モン		- EEF . J 194					
	Invoice Number	Number	Invoice no. that send to customer	an a					
	Customer Code	Text	Customer Identification	, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,					
	Dilivery Date	Date/Time	Dilvery date	ana da mana da pana da mana da mana da mana da mana da mana ana mana da mana da mana da mana da mana da mana da					
	Customer Name	Text	Customer Name	nn a sa an guar tha ann an fair a sa da an an tao bhaid tha a sao an tha thinn nga tao an ann ann an tao tao ta					
	Contact Name	Text	Contact Name	an na far far far far far far far far far fa					
	Address	Text	Customer Address	tag na felande kannen an an de zie falsde gang an ei de de ste die de ser and					
	Telephone	Number	Phone Number	a francúsky szereszte a szereszte a szereszte a filozofia a szereszte a szereszte a szereszte a szereszte a sze					
	Fax	Number	Fax Number						
			Fick Properties						
	and the second second		Carl Antonia and Carl Control of the						
	Long Int	eger	T-JOS MARCOLL'S MITCHANA AND DESCRIPTION						
		an si san aver dan kan si san si sa	NG (14) L						
	Auto	101mins capite #1-100000000000000000000000000000000000							
		a a succession and a succession of the							
			H						
	0			State of the second second					
	No								
	ndexed No. No	n an fan genere fan de fan En de fan de f							
	1999 - 1999 - 1999 - 1999 - 1999 - 1999 - 1999 - 1999 - 1999 - 1999 - 1999 - 1999 - 1999 - 1999 - 1999 - 1999 -			a Man an feast (and					
		and the second second	a un data a ser liter						
at. It a	and the second								

Figure C.7. Customer Invoice Transaction File

	. Microsoft Access - [Vendor Invoice : Table]								
		in the Street of	Here is a second se						
E	NESDY								
	Invoice Number	Number	Invoice number						
	Date	Date/Time	Date/Month/Year						
	Vendor Code	Number	Vendor Identification						
	Vendor Name	Text	Yendor Name						
	Address	Text	Address						
	Telephone	Number	Phone No.						
	Fax	Number	Fax No.						
	Heceived Date	Date/Ime	Date/Month/Year						
			Gene Augusta						
	and the second	ana tanu 17.4 mataona 17.4 mataona 17.4 marta ang taona 17.4 ma	TECH VOLVMAR & TYMARIAN VOLVI LE NEURIANNANY						
	Construction Organization	-9-4-2, 1274,57 8776,7451-227691-0; 127-1477207-2472, 24671, ²⁴⁷ 80-04	hanna er sen en de la de sen en la defension de la de la desta d						
		\$\$1344\$m_m_\$495554mm_\$132677787777786763462754574584684	The field description as the field the proposition of the field of the						
		an an a an							
	a a construction of the second se	92,050, 141,000,000,050,050,000,000,000,000,000,00							
	No	an a							
	No No								
	and the second second								
	NATION AND ADDRESS	in de la seconda		T.					
201- 201-5-01			I MICIOSOFI ACCESS - IV March and College Stell W.R. C. R.						



APPENDIX D

UNI

4

OldMDZA * "

Input/Output Design and Reports

ัสสัมย์ต่

SINC

*







ABAC







🕤 Microso	ft Acc	ess - ICu	ustomer1)									26
				Beend	Cook We							
	B	l de St	常唱				21	外 相同	7		E.	n A
				Ċ	cione	e che						
Cireton	ier CO	de j,		116 K S788	2		Dista	18/2/99	}			
Kustón	ver Ve	over 👘	DTC Inte	ematior	nal Co., Ltd							
1 Acres			21 /20.2	2 Coi N	a arm du pla	Dom.		DLL 1	an a			
			21720-2		<u>yann du pie</u>	e, nam	a iv nu					
Teleph	one		679-851	1			Fex	289-16	09			
Fieduci			activitanes	Pr			New York	Store .		Total		
3		CONNECT	TOR	DIN C	er 12V Onnector	347	2	50 50		100 50		
			120			C. Calif				150		
			y els			S. Constant				15		
					8 <i>3</i> 23					165		
Prode I.			2		10.			C				
	* . * .					WAREN A			and and a second	ere JCAF	o (num)	2003) #
		201 - C. 18			Heros	on Acce	88 - JC.,	• (* 185)	and the second second	16 B. 24	Env	Rey Dia y













Microsoft Access	- [Customer2]				
T Pa La 2004	Dend Const Loodin				
	2 13 国 こ ジ				Minimize Window
					e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e
1 HOLE AND					
and the second sec	· · ·	totter		A series	
			Maria Ann		
Conspondent Conse			Nuuri Arin	J.	
	R & D Audio Co.	, Ltd.		<u></u>	
- Address	212/4 Sukhumvi	t 63 Ekamai, Bkk 101	10		
Fox	392-9657	Tsiephone	714-9765	ļ.	
Credit Term	30 days				
	an a				
Credit Linni	20000		1997 - Barrison Barrison (* 1997) 1997 - Barrison (* 1997) 1997 - Barrison (* 1997)		
Amount Owers					
					Ē
	81.41.11.1				House Contractor
		A Nicional Access	. IC		EROSIE TAL
Provident and the second s	and the second secon			to to the second second	




















Stock Dail	y Report	CCIII 2	MD			
Product Code	Product Name	Product Detail	Vendor Name	Unit Price	Sale Price	Quantity
		*				
	BATTERY	BATTERY GPO60BVK 3.6	Kawasaki Co.	20	30	56
1	BATTERY	BATTERY GPO60BVK 3.6	Chitawa Co.	45	50	10
1.1.0	BOTTON BATTERY	BATTERY CR 1216	KAO Co.	50	60	67
1.1.1	BOTTON BATTERY	BATTERY CR 1220	Kawasaki Co.	40	50	50
1.1.1	BOTTON BATTERY	BATTERY CR 1220	KAO Co.	45	55	43
7	BUZZER	BUZZER 12V	Kawasaki Co.	st R	50	10
2.1	BUZZER	BUZZER 01 Db	Kawasaki Co.	10 S	20	23
2.2	BUZZER	BUZZER BFL 01G	Chitawa Co.	35	40	24
ŝ	CONNECTOR	DIN CONNECTOR	KAO Co.	40	45	40
ę	CONNECTOR	DIN CONNECTOR	Chitawa Co.	50	55	22
		LAND *	A THAI			
18/2/99						Page 1 of 1

Table D.14. Stock Daily Report

*	Product Code	Quantity	Sale Price	Total Amount
surapa Audio Co., Ltd.	1.1.0	10	20	200
turapa Audio Co., Ltd.	R07 07.1	30	45	1,350
urapa Audio Co., Ltd.	HER	10	50	500
ar East Co., Ltd.	1.1.0	5 5	40	200
r. Surachai Pichit	2		45	45
r. Manit Boontien	2		45 45	45
iss Noi Malaniyom	S	1	10	20
ล้อ			17)	
a la				
*	4		0	
	DAN	1mm		
	ANA			
				Page 1 of 1

Table D.15. Customer Order Report

Vendor (Order Rep	ort	-d M D-			
PO Number	Vendor Code	Vendor Name	Product Code	Quantity	Unit Price To	otal Amount
		*				
+1	1	Chitawa Co.	1.1.0	6	10	06
6	7	Kawasaki Co.	1.2.1	∞	20	160
Э	3	Kang International	2.2	10	10	100
n	Э	Kang International	1 3 × 1	10	10	100
ю	ŝ	Kang International	4	E	10	20
4	6	West Tech Co.	1.2.2	51 R	30	450
4	9	West Tech Co.	3 S	S	25	50
		CABRIEL VINCIT *	THAILA	ITY		
18/2/99						Page 1 of 1

Table D.16. Vendor Order Report

	of Stock	20	5	10	1 of 1
	ct on Hand Out c	10	S	30	Раде
	Required Stock Produ	30	10	P VERSITY	
SUMPT	Vendor Name F	Kawasaki Co.	-1 Kawasaki Co.	MEC International	
SV	Product Detail	BATTERY CR 1216	BATTERY HOLDER 11-	RECOMBRIEL VINCIT OMNIA OMNIA SIA ASIA	
ock Report	Product Name	BOTTON BATTERY	BOTTON BATTERY	DIAC	
Out of St	Product Code	1.1.0	1.2.0	4	18/2/99

Table D.17. Out of Stock Daily Report

Top Sales	Daily Report	ISSN 1	JMPT				
Product Code	Product Name	Product Detail	Vendor Name	Sale Qty	Sale price	Total Income	Date
		2					
	BATTERY	BATTERY GPO60BVK	Chitawa Co.	30	100	3,000	1/3/99
1.1.0	BOTTON BATTERY	BATTERY CR 1216	Kawasaki Co.	29	80	2,160	1/3/99
6	BUZZER	BUZZER 12V	West Tech Co.	28	10	280	1/3/99
2.1	BUZZER	BUZZER 01Db	West Tech Co.	26	30	780	1/3/99
6	BUZZER	BUZZER 12V	Chitawa Co.	20	30	600	1/3/99
4	DIAC	DIAC DB3	West Tech Co.	18	10	180	1/3/99
4	DIAC	DIAC	Chitawa Co.	15	20	300	1/3/99
3	CONNECTOR	DIN CONNECTOR	West Tech Co.	14	10	140	1/3/99
3.1	CONNECTOR	D-SUB CONNECTOR	West Tech Co.	13	60	780	1/3/99
2.1	BUZZER	BUZZER 01Db	Chitawa Co.	10	60	600	1/3/99
		* 0MU	June				
		ANA					
1/3/99						Pa	<u>ge</u> 1 of 1

Table D.18. Top Sales Daily Report





Stock R	keport		VIISS	- al				
Product Code	Product Name	Product Detail	Vendor Code	Vendor Name	Unit Price	Sale Price	Product on Hand	Value on Hand
		*			1			
1	BATTERY	BATTERY GPO60BVK	I B	Chitawa Co.	20	30	10	300
1	BATTERY	BATTERY GPO60BVK	4 ROT	KAO Co.	45	50	10	500
1.1.0	BOTTON BATTER	YBATTERY CR 1216	2 HER	Kawasaki Co.	50	60	20	1200
1.1.1	BOTTON BATTER	YBATTERY CR 1220	<i>s 2</i>	Kawasaki Co.	40	50	50	2500
1.1.1	BOTTON BATTER	YBATTERY CR 1220	4	KAO Co.	45	55	40	2200
2	BUZZER	BUZZER 12V	0	Chitawa Co.	45	50	10	5000
2.1	BUZZER	BUZZER 01 Db	S	Chitawa Co.	10	20	23	460
2.2	BUZZER	BUZZER BFL 01G	4	KAO Co.	35	40	24	696
3	CONNECTOR	DIN CONNECTOR	2 BRI	Kawasaki Co.	40	45	40	1800
3	CONNECTOR	DIN CONNECTOR	4	KAO Co.	50	55	22	1375
		*	ILAN	THA	0			
28/2/99								Page 1 of 1

Table D.20. Stock Monthly Report

ACAN ACAN ACTION ACTION

	dated		0/2/09	1/2/99	3/2/99	3/2/99	8/2/99	of 1
	ock Up		20 2(5 2]	10 23	9	50 53	Page 1
	Out of Sto							
	Hand		10	5	30	20	10	
	Product on			3	N	N	ERSITY	
	Stock	5	30	10	40	29	39	
	Required							
	ame		Co.	O	national			
t	Vendor N:		Kawasaki (Kawasaki (MEC Inter	KAO Co.	West Tech	
Sepo		*	090	292	TOR	ECTOR	OMNIA *	
I ylu	ct Detail		ERY GP	ER 12V	ONNEC	CONN	ลัยอัส ล ั ^น -	
ontl	Produ		BATTI	BUZZI	DIN-C	D-SUB	DIAC	
k M	t Name		RY	R	SCTOR	SCTOR		
Stoc	Product		BATTE	BUZZE	CONNE	CONNE	DIAC	
t of	ct Code		T	7	c.	3.1	4	3/99
Ou	Produ							1/.

Table D.21. Out of Stock Monthly Report

Sales Report	MUSSA	Pri		
Product Code Product Name	Product Detail	Month	Year	Total Income
	Service Servic			
1 BATTERY	BATTERY GPO60BVK	6	1999	5,900
1.1.0 BOTTON BATTERY	BATTERY CR 1216	61	6661	10,000
2 BUZZER	BUZZER 12V	5	1999	25,000
2.1 BUZZER	BUZZER 01Db	7	1999	200
2.2 BUZZER	BUZZER BFL 01G	E N	6661	350
3 CONNECTOR	DIN CONNECTOR	R	6661	43,089
3.1 CONNECTOR	D-SUB CONNECTOR	С М	1999	12,009
4 DIAC	DIAC DB3	2	1999	567
4.1 DIAC	DIAC DB4	6	6661	249
	*	0,		
	AILAND	TH		
1/3/1999				Page 1 of 1

Table D.22. Sales Report

•

Γ								
		Value on Hand	CC C	700	210	200	450	150 Dage 1 of 1
		Sale price	ç	07	30	20	15	15
		Product on Hand	c.	<u>0</u>	10	10	30	ERSITY
	PT	Sale Qty		05	10		کر 10 کر 10	30
	SUM	Purchase Qty		RO	80	02 10	40	ST GABRIEL
	sport	Product Detail	TITO CONTRACTOR	BAI LEKI UPUOUB VI	BATTERY CR 1216	BUZZER 12V	BUZZER 01Db	BUZZER BFLLOIG 1969 1969 1969 1969
	ry Status Re	Product Name	VATTE A	BAIJERY	BOTTON BATTERY	BUZZER	BUZZER	BUZZER
	Inventor	Product Code	-	-	1.1.0	7	2.1	1/3/00

Table D.23. Inventory Status Report

71

ABAC GRADUATE SCHOOL LIBRARY

rice Total Income Updated
Sale Qty Sale pr
A CHUON LABOR

Table D.24. Top Sales Monthly Report

BIBLIOGRAPHY

- FitzGerald, J. and A, F. FitzGerald. <u>Fundamental of System Analysis</u>, 3rd Edition. John Wiley & Sons, Inc., 1987.
- Gibson, Michael L. and Cary, T. Hughes. <u>System Analysis and Design: A</u> <u>Comprehensive Methodology with CASE</u>, Boyd & Fraser Publishing Company, 1994.
- Kendall, K.E. and Julie E. Kendall. <u>System Analysis and Design</u>, 3rd Edition. Prentice Hall, 1995.



